Pioneers At The Root Of Fight To Save The Redwoods

By Margaret Koch

California gained its first state
park because determined citizens
would not hear to the B1g Basin
redwoods being cut.

Through the years since the
State of California was born in
1850, there have been flurries of
“Save the Redwoods.” Califor-
nians have always heeded the cry
—and opened their hearts and
pocketbooks.

The first Battle of the Red-
woods began in 1900, when Henry
Middleton, a Santa Cruz county
lumberman, announced he was
going to move his largest saw
mill into the area known as Big
Basin. The words were no sooner
out of Middleton’s mouth than
Californians had joined ranks for
the first skirmish.

Up until 1880, Santa Cruz coun-
ty redwoods marched in a near-
ly unbroken line from Aptos to
Santa Cldara county line. But by
1900 most of this first growth
was gone. Big Basin was an ex-
ception because of its remote lo-
cation and . inaccessibility. But
now it was threatened and the
people were aroused.

Middleten, whe no doubt

wished he had kept his mouth
shut, immediately received a
visit from members of the Sem-

pervirens club. And before they
left he had signed an agree-

ment to sell 3800 acres of Big

Basin property to the State of

California for $200,000.

Then a group got busy. "Mrs.
Phoebe A. Hearst donated money
for campaign expenses; Duncan
McPherson, editor-owner of The
Sentinel, presented a resolution
to the California Press association
urging its support; Mrs. Joseph
Clifford McCracken, a writer
for the Morning Sentinel in
the early 1900’s, wrote articles.
Many helped, including the wide-
ly known San Jose arist, An-
drew P. Hill. Hill’s anger had
been fired when he wanted to
photograph redwoods at Felton’s
Big Trees (now Henry Cowell
Redwoods state park) and was
driven out by the owner.

A lot of people were for saving
Big Basin and making it into a
public park. But there were others
who weren’t. And when George
S. Walker of Vallejo introduced
the Big Basin bill in the state
legislature, he was greeted with

| remarks like: “200,000 for a park!
Foolishness!”

So the enemies were rallying
too.

But Big Basin had powerful
friends. Hill passed his spec-
tacular photos around; the Reyv.
Robert E. Kenna SJ, an origi-
nal Sempervirens club member
and president of Santa Clara
college (now University), spoke
before the ways and means com-
mittee. Attorney D. M. Delmos
of San Francisco, noted orator,
spoke.

The University of C-ahforma and
Stanford University also gave
their official support. And after
60 days of struggle, the State of
California owned its first park.
It was known at first as Califor-
nia Redwood Park, sometimes as
Sempervirens Park.

In the summer of 1901 a large
group of Sempervirens club mem-
bers camped in the Basin before
it was opened to the public. Three
state officials also visited it that
summer: L. J. Gage, former gov-
ernor of California, Gov. George
C. Pardee, incumbent, and Gov.
West of Utah. Their stopping
place became known as Gover-
nors’ Camp.

‘But the new state park’s strug-
gles were not over yet. On Sep-
tember 7, 1904, a forest fire broke
cut. Teams of men under the di-
rection of Park Warden J. H. B.
Pilkington fought a 20-day battle
Rain fell on September 27 to fi-
nally put out the fire which had
done great damage. One giant
redwood tree, smoldering inside,
burned for 14 months after every-
thing else was out. The tree’s
height was gradually reduced by
the fire in its innards.

In 1908 ancther Battle of the
Redwoods was fought at Big
Basin. A state forester decided
(unwisely) that the burned red-
woods should be removed from
the park.

Now, Sequoia Sempervirens has
its name for an excellent reason:
Sempervirens — ‘“‘always living”
or “ever living.” Badly burned
Sequoias will come back and

The old-timers were so im-
pressed with Big Basin’s natur-
al wonders that they feught to
have it preserved permanently
as a public state park. Visitors
there at the turn of the cen-

tury included Sempervirens
club members and The Senti-
nel’s owner-publishef, Duncan

sprout new foliage if left alone.
But before the tree cutters
were finished, some of the Ba-
sin’s finest specimens were splin-
tered down to grape stakes, posts,
pickets and shakes.
Hearing of the devastation, the

McPherson, shown above with
the beard. Today, the park
which is one of the most pop-
ular in California’s system of
state parks, is visited by as
many as 12,000 people in a sin-
gle day at the height of the sea-
son. This month the amount of
$437,000 has been budgeted by

| Sempervirens club and Native
Sons of the Golden West sent
spies into the Basin to find out
for sure. Photographs were tak-
en. Santa Cruz County Grand
Jury acted at once and the cut-
ting stopped.

the state to develop approxi-
mately 100 new campsites, ex-
tend sewer, electric and water
lines and improve the road
leading to Sky Meadow area, in
which the campsites will be es-
tablished. (Photograph from
the collection of Roy Boeken-
oogen.)

In 1912 Arthur A. Taylor, edi-
tor of Santa Cruz Surf and sec-
retary of the state park com-
mission, published a book “Cal-
ifornia Redwood Park,” now a
collectors’ item.

In 1917 Senator Herbert F.
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Jones of San Jose, whose mother
was a leader in the Sempervirens
club, introduced legislature to
build access roads and add 1200
acres to the park.

A fountain in the park also
was dedicated to Hill, the first
“man behind the camera,” who
died in 1922,

The park’s first trail guide and
map, entitled ‘“Redwood Trail,”
was printed in 1923 by Roy Ful-
mer who operated the park curio
shop for 21 years. Proceeds from
sales of the pamphlet went to-
ward trail upkeep. Unable to ob-
tain redwood gift items for the
shop in the Basin, Fulmer set up
a redwood factory and turned
out his own, also supplying shops
all over California.

. Fulmer originally was hired
by Hill in 1921, but he also
served as Big Basin postmaster
for 20 years. Later he operated
the dining room, lodge, store
and gas station, He retired from
the Basin to run for mayor of
Santa Cruz — a post in which
he served two terms.

In 1941 a CCC camp (Civilian
Conservation Corps) was estab-
lished at the Basin and operated
during winter months. Hand-
hewn bridges and ' new camp

In 1945 — even with wartime
gas rationing — park figures
show it was loaded during Aug-
ust.

In 1962 an unusual snowfall
damaged tan oaks and small trees
in the park — this unique report
was made by the current Park
Supervisor Anton Trigiero. Wal-
ter F. 'Martell serves as assistant
supervisor.

Last year an editorial in The
Sentinel stated: “Santa Cruz coun-
ty has one of the better systems
of parks and beaches in the state.

Pt
DENTAL PLATES

Dr. C. H. Lindner, Jr.

REPAIRS
FAST

103 Vine St.

423-3364

stoves were built by the 180 men. |

For more than 10 years they hsave
attracted three million visitors
annually . .

This year more campsites are
going to be constructed in Sky
Meadow to meet the ever grow-
ing demands of the Amerlcan
public.

Next year?

TRACED TO THEM
Students of folklore believe
that the popular customs of Hal-
loween exhibit traces of the Rom-
an harvest festival and of driud-
ism, according to the Encyclopae-
dia Britannica.
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